
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

July 2, 2014 5
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 7
Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers

Accounts Payable 11
Monthly Investment Report Ending June 30, 2014

Investment Report 21
Selection of Banking Service Provider for the City of Kerman

Staff Report - Selection of Banking Service Provider 24

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, July 16, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep 
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Update on Wastewater Treatment Plant Solar Project (LP) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Representatives from Borrego Solar will provide a brief 
presentation on the status of the solar project at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. This 
item is informational only. 

 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

2



 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: July 2, 2014 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 
Payroll Report: June 21, 2014 - July 05, 2014: $122,248.99; Overtime: $3,442.92; 
Standby: $985.62; Comp Time Earned: 7.5 hours 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers  
 
Nos. 21070-21156: $360,489.37; Electronic Funds Transfer; $39,206.48 
Excepting: Valley Food Center: #21088 - $256.96 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending June 30, 2014 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as presented 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Investment Report 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Selection of Banking Service Provider for the City of Kerman (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council review proposals and by motion adopt resolution 
selecting preferred banking service provider for the City of Kerman. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Selection of Banking Service Provider 
 

3



 
5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

 
6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Government Code Section 54956.9 Liability Claim - Gallo; Agency Claimed Against: City 
of Kerman 
 

B. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; Agency 
Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee organization: City of 
Kerman Miscellaneous Employees Group, and Kerman Public Safety Employees 
Association. 
 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

4



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, July 2, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Yep (GY), Dhaliwal (RD), Nijjer (BN), Wilcox (DW)  
Absent: Fox 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City 
Attorney Blum, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, Finance Director 
Public Works Director 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep  

• Call to Order 6:34 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present except 
NF/BN 

• Invocation  

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved RD/DW 
(3-0-2) NF/BN 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Proclamation Acknowledging July as Parks Make Life Better Month (PG) Presented 
 
6:36 p.m. BN 
arrived. 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL Paulina, American 
Cancer Society 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll Report: May 25, 2014 - June 21, 2014:  
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants Nos. 20950-21069: $374,588.76; Electronic Bank 
Transfers: $41,382.04 Except: Kerwest: 20992 - $297.50 Valley Food: 
21018 - $247.73 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

Approved 
excepting 20992, 
21018 DW/RD  
(4-0-1) NF 
 

 

 

 

 

 

21018 DW/RD  
(3-0-1-1) NF/GY 
20992 RD/BN  
(3-0-1-1) NF/DW 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

5



4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Purposed Kerman Inn Mural Project (PG) Staff to advise 
Council of 
progress. 

RECOMMENDATION: Council review, provide input and support the 
proposed Kerman Inn Mural Project. 

 

B. SUBJECT: Sphere of Influence Boundary Change (LP)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council receive an update on the proposed Sphere 
of Influence boundary change and direct staff accordingly. 

Council support 
proceeding with 
SOI as presented. 

C. SUBJECT: Selection of Banking Service Provider for the City of Kerman (TJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council review proposals and adopt resolution 
selecting preferred banking service provider for the City of Kerman. 

Item continued to 
the July 16 mtg. 
Council requests 
additional 
information. 
 

D. SUBJECT: Katey's Kids Park Restroom Update (PG) Staff given 
direction to 
proceed. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff seeks Council’s input, suggestions and 
approval for the Katey’s Kids Park restroom facility. 

 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

A Nominations for City Council is July 14, 2014 - August 8, 2014. A candidate 
filing class will be held on Wednesday, July 9, 2014, 5:30-7:00 p.m. at the 
Fresno County Elections Office Training Room. 

 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

7. CLOSED SESSION 8:10 p.m. 

A. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; 
Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee 
organization: City of Kerman Miscellaneous Employees Group, and 
Kerman Public Safety Employees Association. 

 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 8:50 p.m. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 8:51 p.m. 

 
 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 
 

I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date above 

written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 
 

         Date: July 3, 2014 
 
         ____________________ 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of June 30, 2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:
Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/14 99,000.00               99,000.00         99,000.00               820.25             
Capmark Bank - Midvale Utah 615-030525-245 5.05% 7/30/08 7/30/13 97,000.00               (97,000.00)      -                   -                          2,429.12          
Discover Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 9/14/11 9/16/13 98,000.00               (98,000.00)      -                   -                          474.43             
Bank of China 615-030525-245 1.05% 10/31/11 11/1/13 248,000.00             (248,000.00)    -                   -                          1,305.57          
American Express Bank 615-030525-246 4.75% 12/24/08 12/24/13 95,000.00               (95,000.00)      -                   -                          2,262.43          
Spiritbank - Tulsa Oklahoma 615-030525-245 2.00% 6/17/10 2/18/14 99,000.00               (99,000.00)      -                   -                          1,334.45          
Scotiabank De Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 1.40% 3/11/11 3/11/14 196,000.00             (196,000.00)    -                   -                          2,744.00          
BMW Bank of North America 615-030525-245 1.35% 4/27/11 4/28/14 248,000.00             (248,000.00)    -                   -                          1,678.59          
GE Capital Financial 615-030525-245 1.45% 5/13/11 5/13/14 248,000.00             (248,000.00)    -                   -                          3,596.00          
American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/11/11 8/11/14 52,000.00               52,000.00         52,056.68               624.00             
CIT Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 8/10/11 8/11/14 46,000.00               46,000.00         46,050.14               529.00             
World Financial Network NB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/31/11 8/29/14 200,000.00             (200,000.00)    -                   -                          2,623.30          
Ally Bank  615-030525-245 1.75% 10/8/10 10/8/14 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,395.00             1,750.00          
CIT Bank, Salt Lake City, UT 615-030525-245 1.50% 5/4/11 11/4/14 99,000.00               99,000.00         99,364.32               1,485.00          
GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 11/5/10 11/5/14 97,000.00               97,000.00         97,413.22               1,649.00          
GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 1/21/11 1/21/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,657.00             843.01             
State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 3/24/11 3/24/15 98,000.00               98,000.00         99,006.46               988.05             
Ally Bank, Midvale 615-030525-245 1.80% 6/8/11 6/8/15 147,000.00             147,000.00       148,875.72             2,646.00          
EverBank 615-030525-245 0.70% 12/14/12 6/15/15 98,000.00               98,000.00         98,358.68               686.00             
Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00             150,000.00       152,206.50             3,000.00          
GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00               50,000.00         50,450.00               750.00             
Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00               97,000.00         97,573.27               529.12             
Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,027.00             352.88             
Discover Bank 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00               99,000.00         100,502.82             773.56             
State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       101,912.00             2,250.00          
Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00        95,000.00         94,990.50               171.79             
Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00               51,000.00         51,869.04               688.50             
Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00               48,000.00         48,481.92               672.00             
Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00      100,000.00       99,809.00               -                  
Doral Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 6/12/13 6/13/16 149,000.00             149,000.00       149,141.55             1,043.00          
Doral Bank San Juan PR 615-030525-245 1.20% 6/28/12 6/28/16 99,000.00               99,000.00         100,192.95             1,188.00          
State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00               47,000.00         48,100.74               940.00             
Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,469.00             504.11             
Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00             200,000.00       204,150.00             3,700.00          
Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00               53,000.00         53,096.99               583.04             
Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00             196,000.00       195,945.12             1,764.02          
CIT Bank 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00               98,000.00         98,032.34               444.62             
Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00      248,000.00       246,980.72             -                  
American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00               98,000.00         99,214.22               1,666.00          
Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00             150,000.00       152,241.00             2,550.00          
1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00        96,000.00         95,957.76               -                  
Third Federal 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00        99,000.00         99,041.58               -                  
Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       246,445.04             3,100.00          
Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,169.20             2,480.01          
American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00               98,000.00         96,854.38               1,127.00          
Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00        97,000.00         97,771.15               831.28             
Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00      248,000.00       247,365.12             -                  
BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00      200,000.00       198,616.00             3,933.94          

Average Rate 1.33%
Subtotal - CD's 4,744,000.00          (146,000.00)    -                        4,598,000.00    4,615,784.13          65,511.07        

21



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of June 30, 2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
Government Securities:

Subtotal - Government Securities -                          -                  -                        -                   -                          -                  

Central Valley Comm Bank CD
1.34 6/8/12 6/8/17 200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             2,687.34          

Total CD and Government Securities Investments 4,944,000.00          (146,000.00)    -                        4,798,000.00    4,815,784.13          68,198.41        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                          -                   

(City of Kerman) 149,068.80             149,068.80       149,068.80             
Interest -                   

-                   -                  
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 149,068.80             -                  -                        149,068.80       149,068.80             -                  

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 6/30/13 3,014,204.30          3,014,204.30    
Interest 7/31/13 383.99             383.99              383.99             

8/31/13 305.31             305.31              305.31             
9/30/13 156.88             156.88              156.88             

10/31/13 142.77             142.77              142.77             
11/30/13 206.06             206.06              206.06             
12/31/13 189.38             189.38              189.38             
1/31/14 176.24             176.24              176.24             
2/28/14 265.89             265.89              265.89             
3/31/14 274.54             274.54              274.54             
4/30/14 172.06             172.06              172.06             
5/31/14 234.06             234.06              234.06             
6/30/14 281.92             281.92              281.92             

Transfers In/(Out) 8/12/13 (280,000.00)    (280,000.00)     
8/16/13 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
8/19/13 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
8/22/13 (800,000.00)    (800,000.00)     
8/28/13 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
9/11/13 (250,000.00)    (250,000.00)     
10/3/13 (150,000.00)    (150,000.00)     

10/29/13 500,000.00      500,000.00       
11/1/13 250,000.00      250,000.00       

11/14/13 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
12/13/14 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
12/17/13 (225,000.00)    (225,000.00)     
1/31/14 750,000.00      750,000.00       
3/6/14 (150,000.00)    (150,000.00)     

3/21/14 (85,000.00)      (85,000.00)       
4/3/14 (225,000.00)    (225,000.00)     

4/30/14 400,000.00      400,000.00       
5/31/14 700,000.00      700,000.00       
6/11/14 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
6/19/14 (125,000.00)    (125,000.00)     
6/27/14 175,000.00      175,000.00       

3,014,204.30          (112,210.90)    -                        2,901,993.40    2,901,993.40          2,789.10          

22



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of June 30, 2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
SBI, CA Money Market Account
Beginning Balance 6/30/13 249,133.52             249,133.52       
Interest 7/31/13 137.53             137.53              137.53             

8/31/13 137.61             137.61              137.61             
9/30/13 133.25             133.25              133.25             

10/25/13 99.13               99.13                99.13               
Transfers In/(Out) -                   -                  

10/25/13 (249,641.04)    (249,641.04)     
-                   

249,133.52             (249,133.52)    -                        (0.00)                (0.00)                       507.52             

Ending Balance - Money Market Accts 3,263,337.82          (361,344.42)    -                        2,901,993.40    2,901,993.40          3,296.62          

Subtotal All City Investments 8,007,337.82          (507,344.42)    -                        7,499,993.40    7,517,777.53          71,495.03        
SUCCESSOR AGENCY

Total - CD's -                          -                  -                        -                   -                          -                  

CVCB Money Market Accts 015029549
Beginning Balance 6/30/13 16,361.81               16,361.81         
Interest 7/31/13 0.69                 0.69                  0.69                 

8/30/13 0.69                 0.69                  0.69                 
9/30/13 0.67                 0.67                  0.67                 

10/31/13 0.69                 0.69                  0.69                 
11/30/13 0.67                 0.67                  0.67                 
12/31/13 0.69                 0.69                  0.69                 
1/31/14 0.69                 0.69                  0.69                 
2/28/14 0.61                 0.61                  0.61                 
3/31/14 7.91                 7.91                  7.91                 
4/30/14 4.61                 4.61                  4.61                 
5/31/14 4.46                 4.46                  4.46                 
6/30/14 4.32                 4.32                  4.32                 

Transfers In/(Out) 3/3/14 160,000.00      160,000.00       
3/21/14 (45,000.00)      (45,000.00)       

-                   
-                   

Subtotal CVCB Money Market 16,361.81               115,026.70      -                        131,388.51       131,388.51             26.70               

Subtotal SBI Money Market -                          -                  -                        -                   -                          -                  

Ending Balance - Money Market Accts 16,361.81               115,026.70      -                        131,388.51       131,388.51             26.70               

Subtotal All Successor Agency Investments 16,361.81               115,026.70      -                        131,388.51       131,388.51             26.70               

Total Investments 8,372,768.43          (392,317.72)    -                        7,980,450.71    7,998,234.84          71,521.73        
Market Value Adjustment 17,784.13               

(392,317.72)     
(392,317.72)     

(0.00)                

23



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JULY 16, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: Selection of Banking Service Provider for the City of Kerman-Amended 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Council review proposals and by motion adopt resolution selecting preferred banking service provider for the City of 
Kerman. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 

On May 20, 2014, a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Banking Services was sent to the three local banks. Two of the 
three local banks responded to the RFP before the May 30, 2014 deadline: Central Valley Community Bank and 
WestAmerica Bank. Bank of America did not submit a proposal. The RFP included Account Analysis statements for 
the months of February, March and April 2014 so comparisons would be based on the City’s recent account activity. 
The RFP allows the Council and staff to review banking services and costs on a competitive basis.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 

At the July 2, 2014 City Council meeting staff was directed to compare the earnings credit/allowance between the two 
banking institutions. Attachment ‘A’ has been revised and refects the earnings credit from the total service charge 
(net service charge). 
 
Additionally staff has provided investment information for all City funds currently held with Central Valley Community 
Bank as Attachment ‘B’.  
 

DISCUSSION  
 

The City of Kerman has been banking with Central Valley Community Bank (CVCB) since July 2007. In the interest of 
ensuring competitive rates, maximizing investment earnings and maintaining a high level of service, staff prepared a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Banking Services. In preparing the RFP, staff also wanted the Council to select a 
preferred bank prior to converting banking information into the new accounting software.  
 

Central Valley Community Bank provides full service banking services to the City of Kerman including electronic 
banking services, on-line daily cash transactions, stop payments, transfers, ACH (transmittal of electronic payroll for 
employees) and remote deposits. Currently the City of Kerman has four main accounts: the General Fund checking 
and money market accounts and the Successor Agency checking and money market accounts. The majority of all 

24



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 2 of 8 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  

Service Central Valley Community Bank WestAmerica Bank

Lobby Hours
9 a.m. - 5 p.m. M-Thurs                                         

9 a.m. - 6 p.m. Friday
9 a.m. - 4 p.m. M-Thurs                                                             

9 a.m. - 6 p.m. Friday

Yes No

(Actual earnings thru May is $260.53) $0.00

No No

(CVCB  has waived fees in the past)
Rec'd email from WestAm on June 9, 2014 at 3:33 p.m. 

confirming proposal submitted would be their offer at 
this time without waivers.

Other Fees All fees included in analysis Other fees listed in proposal

Investment Earnings on General Actual earnings of $712.49 from Est. earnings of $514.78 from
Fund Money Market Account February - April 2014 February - April 2014

Other
Direct email communication with Branch 

Manager/Customer Service 
All email communication first sent to corporate office

Interest on General Fund Checking 

Fees Waived

City activity is processed through the General Fund checking account. Due to the overall level of deposits and 
banking activity, CVCB has waived its customary banking fees resulting in no cost to the City.  
 
The RFP was released on May 20, 2014 and the deadline to submit a proposal was May 30, 2014. Central Valley 
Community Bank and WestAmerica Bank were the only two local banks that submitted a proposal. After reviewing 
the two proposals staff held telephone interviews with both WestAmerica and Central Valley Community Bank on 
June 3, 2014 to review essential banking services. The Finance Director along with both Senior Account Clerks 
participated in the interviews.  
 
Staff asked for clarification from the information submitted in the RFP such as banking hours, if interest would be paid 
on the General Fund checking account and other services offered to streamline processes. Below is a recap of the 
general services offered by each bank.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The full cost comparison between Central Valley Community Bank and WestAmerica Bank is detailed in Attachment 
‘A’. Based on the estimated three month average volume, the estimated banking service costs from Central Valley 
Community Bank and WestAmerica Bank are $716.97 and 757.12, respectively.  
 
A copy of the two proposals is on file in the Finance Department should the Council wish to review the documents. 
On June 4, 2014, Central Valley Community Bank submitted a letter included as Attachment ‘B’ clarifying the bank’s 
management team and organizational structure at the Kerman branch.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The City is currently not charged banking service fees by Central Valley Community Bank. The two proposals 
received include service charges based on a three month average volume of banking services. The estimated 
monthly service fees for Central Valley Community Bank total $716.97 and the service fees for WestAmerica Bank 
total $757.12. 
 

25



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 3 of 8 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  
 PUBLIC HEARING  

 
None Required 
 
Attachments: 

A. Cost Comparison between Central Valley Community Bank and WestAmerica Bank 
B. Summary of Investments with Central Valley Community Bank as of June 30, 2014 
C. Letter from Central Valley Community Bank defining branch organization 
D. Resolution Selecting Preferred Banking Service Provider 

  

26



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 4 of 8 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

Comparison of Banking Proposals 

 

Average Central Valley Total Total
Description of Estimated  Community Service WestAmerica Service
Services Rendered Volume Bank Price Charge Bank Price Charge

Cash Deposited 989.89               0.13                   128.69               $1.30/$1000 128.68            

Charge Back Items 3.33                   8.00                   26.67                 10.00                 33.33             

Internet ACH 502.67               0.15                   75.40                 0.09                   45.24             

Checks Cashed "On-Us" 4.67                   0.14                   0.65                   -                    -                 

Remote Deposits 61.00                 0.15                   9.15                   0.10                   6.10               

Remote Deposit Fees 1.00                   100.00               100.00               50.00                 50.00             

Debit Web Transfers 0.67                   0.14                   0.09                   0.09                   0.06               

Internet Banking Services 1.00                   25.00                 25.00                 20.00                 20.00             

Maintenance Fees 2.00                   15.00                 30.00                 17.00                 34.00             

Debits Processed 209.33               0.14                   29.31                 0.15                   31.40             

Credits Processed 25.33                 1.40                   35.47                 1.30                   32.93             

ACH Debit Fees 18.33                 0.15                   2.75                   0.09                   1.65               

ACH Credit Fees 30.33                 0.15                   4.55                   0.09                   2.73               

"On-Us" Item Fee 590.00               0.09                   50.15                 0.10                   59.00             

Foreign Item Fees 1,469.67             0.11                   161.66               0.11                   161.66            

Service Charges (FDIC Charges) 37.43                 36.95             

Other:

Incoming Wire As Needed 20.00 0.00 15.00                 0.00

Outgoing Wire As Needed 30.00 0.00 35.00                 0.00

PC Outgoing Wire As Needed 20.00 0.00 10.00                 0.00

Stop Payment As Needed 25.00 0.00 30.00                 0.00

PC Stop Payment As Needed 15.00 0.00 18.00                 0.00

ACH Software License 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00                   40.00             

ACH File Transmissions 6.50 0.00 0.00 10.00                 65.00             

Check Image Items 209.33 0.00 0.00 0.04                   8.37               

Total Average Cost for Services 716.97 757.12

Earnings Credit (3 Mo Avg) 74.87 74.88             

Net Cost for Services 642.10 682.24            

BANKING SERVICE CHARGE COMPARISON
Based on three months average usage for February, March & April 2014

27



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 5 of 8 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  

6/30/2013 6/30/2014

Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book YTD Interest

Central Valley Comm Bank Interest Rate Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Earned

Certificate of Deposit 1.34% 6/8/12 6/8/17 200,000.00            200,000.00      2,467.07         

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 6/30/13 3,014,204.30         3,014,204.30   
Interest 7/31/13 383.99            383.99            383.99            

8/31/13 305.31            305.31            305.31            
9/30/13 156.88            156.88            156.88            

10/31/13 142.77            142.77            142.77            
11/30/13 206.06            206.06            206.06            
12/31/13 189.38            189.38            189.38            
1/31/14 176.24            176.24            176.24            
2/28/14 265.89            265.89            265.89            
3/31/14 274.54            274.54            274.54            
4/30/14 172.06            172.06            172.06            
5/31/14 234.06            234.06            234.06            
6/30/14 281.92            281.92            281.92            

Transfers In/(Out) 8/12/13 (280,000.00)    (280,000.00)     
8/16/13 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
8/19/13 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
8/22/13 (800,000.00)    (800,000.00)     
8/28/13 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
9/11/13 (250,000.00)    (250,000.00)     
10/3/13 (150,000.00)    (150,000.00)     

10/29/13 500,000.00     500,000.00      
11/1/13 250,000.00     250,000.00      

11/14/13 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
12/13/14 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
12/17/13 (225,000.00)    (225,000.00)     
1/31/14 750,000.00     750,000.00      
3/6/14 (150,000.00)    (150,000.00)     

3/21/14 (85,000.00)      (85,000.00)       
4/3/14 (225,000.00)    (225,000.00)     

4/30/14 400,000.00     400,000.00      
5/31/14 700,000.00     700,000.00      
6/11/14 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
6/19/14 (125,000.00)    (125,000.00)     
6/27/14 175,000.00     175,000.00      

3,014,204.30         (112,210.90)    -                     2,901,993.40   2,789.10         

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

Summary of Investments with Central Valley Bank as of June 30, 2014 
 

 
  

28



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 6 of 8 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

Letter from CVCB 

 

29



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 7 of 8 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  

Attachment ‘C’ (cont’d) 

 
  

30



City Council Staff Report                                                                                                Page 8 of 8 
Results from Banking Request for Proposal 
  

Attachment ‘D’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
SELECTING A BANKING SERVICE PROVIDER AND ESTABLISH A RELATIONSHIP MANAGER 

 
 WHEREAS, local governments use a wide variety of banking services for the deposit, disbursement, and 
safekeeping of public monies; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that prudent procurement practices necessitate the reevaluation 
of banking services on a periodic basis and that changes in technology, cash management practices and banking 
industry structure offer opportunities to reevaluate banking services and costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is consistent “Best Practices” to periodically initiate a competitive bidding and negotiation 
process in accordance with state and local laws for banking services through an official request for proposal; 
establish a relationship manager who will best understand the needs of the City and who will be able to provide 
service improvement recommendations to the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for banking services and received two (2) 
submittals which were evaluated by Finance staff consisting of the Finance Director and two Senior Account Clerks; 
and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN RESOLVES that __________ bank 
be the City of Kerman’s primary banking service provider effective August 1, 2014. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
16th day of July, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
        ABSENT:  
      ABSTAIN:  
              
        Gary Yep 
        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

31


	Agenda
	Minutes
	July 2, 2014

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers
	Accounts Payable

	Monthly Investment Report Ending June 30, 2014
	Investment Report

	Selection of Banking Service Provider for the City of Kerman
	Staff Report - Selection of Banking Service Provider


